ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2004

1:42 p.

VEMBERS PRESENT

ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve

Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i

Cheryl | Heinze,
Carl Gatto

Bob Lynn

Ni ck St epovich
Kelly Wl f

Beth Kerttul a
David Guttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 344

"An Act relating to annual
provi ding for
production. ™"

rent al

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 345
"An Act relating to fees for
providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 344

reduced royalties during the first

state park devel oped canpsites;

m

Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Vice Chair

fees for mning clains, and

three years of

and

SHORT TI TLE: M NI NG FEES, RENTALS, & ROYALTI ES

SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FATE
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
RES, FIN

February 4, 2004



01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H REFERRED TO RESOURCES
01/ 21/ 04 2363 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  FOSTER
02/ 04/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 345
SHORT TI TLE: CAMPSI TE FEES: DI SABLED VETERANS/ SENI ORS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FATE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H RES, FIN

01/ 12/ 04 2286 (H REFERRED TO RESOURCES

02/ 04/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 344 on behal f of
Representati ve Fate, sponsor

STAN FOO, M ning Section Manager

Di vision of Mning, Land and Water

Department of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 344, provided
i nformati on and answer ed questi ons.

KERW N KRAUSE, Geol ogi st

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 344, provided
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

CARCLI NE ALLEN, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 345, on behal f of
Representative Fate, sponsor.

JOE MATHI' S, Co- Omner

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 4, 2004



Mont ana Creek Canpground
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 345.

SHEI LA LANKFORD, Co- Oaner

Mont ana Creek Canpground

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 345.

SCOIT RElI SLAND, Vice President

Al aska Canpground Associ ati on;

Nat i onal Board of RV Parks;

Menber, Board of Directors

Al aska Travel Industry Association

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 345.

PETE PANARESE, Field Operations Manager

Di vision of Parks and Qut door Recreation

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 345, presented
i nformati on and answer ed questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-1, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR NANCY DAHLSTROM called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:42 p.m Represent ati ves
Dahl strom W©Masek, Heinze, WlIf, Gatto, Stepovich, GQGuttenberg,
and Kerttula were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Lynn arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 344-M NI NG FEES, RENTALS, & ROYALTIES

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 344, "An Act relating to annual rental
fees for mning clainms, and providing for reduced royalties
during the first three years of production.”

Nunber 0139

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, presented HB 344
on behalf of Representative Fate, sponsor . M. Pound
characterized HB 344 as a bill the wuld allow Alaska to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2004



continue in [resource developnment]. In the past, he said Al aska
[ had many] small precious netal mnes operated by actual owners
with one or tw enployees. He explained that those m nes
brought inconme to thenselves, individual people, and the state.
M. Pound said many of those hardworking mners have been
forgotten over the years, with [the state] paying nore attention
to oil and gas [developnent]. Today, the small mne is all but
gone from Al aska because [the state] has not given those mners
the incentives to go back into the field to work, he said.

MR. POUND said HB 344 is designed to start that process again.
The incentives include a reduction in the rental fees and clains
for the first five years, and the mner will also get a credit
on his or her royalties for the first three years. He said the
small mner is what made Al aska what it is today. Fur t her nor e,
it is a small business that buys locally and is an industry that
can prosper statewi de. He urged support for HB 344. M. Pound

noted that the sponsor had sone anendnents he would like to
of fer.
Nunber 0421

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked if all clainms are of equal size and
cost.

Number 0450

STAN FOO, M ning Section Mnager, Division of Mning, Land and
Water, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), testified. He
said one of DNR s concerns is that there is currently no
distinction in state |aw between placer mning clains and hard
rock mning clainms, although it is a distinction in federal |aw
M. Foo said that is an issue that would have to be addressed.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE nentioned Donlin Creek. She asked for
clarification on [various sizes of operations].

MR. FOO, in response, said Donlin Creek is on private grounds
controlled by the Calista Corporation and the Kuskokw m
Cor por at i on. He said it seens like the bill is distinguishing
between the small placer operator and the hard rock operator,
which is a distinction that isn't available under state |aw
However, federal |aw does differentiate between placer mnes and
hard rock m nes. Wth regard to size of operations, he said
there is an obvious difference between Fort Knox and a snall
pl acer operator in the size of the property and production and
the possible royalties that m ght be generat ed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2004



Nunmber 0626
REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if the bill reflects that.

MR FOO in response, said the bill seened to distinguish
bet ween pl acer operations and hard rock operati ons.

Number 0735

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she has sone mmj or concerns, one if
which is that it looks like the sponsor wants to mnake the
differentiation between placer and hard rock clains, which the
state doesn't make. She said she is not sure that the |anguage

is really clear [in distinguishing] between small and |arge
m nes, which she thought was the intent. Representati ve
Kerttula indicated she would I|like M. Foo's help to be
absolutely certain of that. She asked M. Foo how this plan is

going to interact with exploration incentive credits currently
in place.

MR. FOO said this bill would provide additional tax or royalty

reducti ons. He said currently, nost of the large hard rock
operators do qualify for the $20 million in royalty reductions
and exploration credit. There is also a break given for the
first three years of operation. This would be in addition to

that, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Pound if the real intent is to
"touch" the placer m nes.

MR. POUND, in response, said correct. He said he had sone
"cl ean up" |anguage.

Nunber 0893
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the fiscal note had a page

and a half of notes at the bottom He turned attention to page
2 of the fiscal note, which read in part:

Therefore, it would not be possible to apply the
provisions of this bill exactly as they are witten.
This fiscal note assunes that this technical issue is
resolved ....

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said apparently [the technical issue] is
not [resolved]. Suggesting that the fiscal note is confusing,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2004



he said the question cannot be addressed because the differences
between [placer mning and hard rock mning] are not resolved

yet . He remarked, "They are lunped together and yet we're
taking them apart in the bill, but they haven't been taken apart
yet."

Number 0973

MR. POUND, in response, said those are technical issues that
he'd just found out about. He said he had sone conceptual
| anguage that he thought woul d resolve the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how rmuch noney the operator would
save because of this bill

MR. POUND, in response, said a lot of it has to do with the
viability of the mne, especially with the royalties aspect. He
said if a mne operator has a relatively viable mne that starts
producing and the operator can save on royalties within the

first five years, it will return the cost of getting that m ne
into operation. M. Pound remarked, "A small mne is probably a
D6 or 8." He said in a placer nmining operation, the other

equi prent that is involved is a fairly large investnent.
Nunber 1082

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH turned attention to page 3, lines 10-
13, which read:

(B) a credit equal to the total amount of net | osses
during the first three vyears of production; this
credit may be applied to the production royalty owed
in the first three vyears during which production
yi el ds a net incone.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if he understands this |anguage
to nean that if the |osses outweigh royalties, then it would be
possible to receive a credit.

Nunber 1143

MR. POUND responded that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if the state will be giving back

noney to conpanies in which [the |osses far outweigh the
royal ties].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2004



MR. POUND responded that he does not foresee a situation where
the state will be giving back noney.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked for clarification on how the
credit works.

MR POUND replied DNR may be able to explain [how the credit

wor ks] better than he can. He said as he understands it, the
mne operators are allowed to take net |osses and apply it as
part of their credit against royalties [owed to the state]. | f

the mine is viable and profitable in three years, then the m ne
operator woul d get an additional royalty credit.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH turned attention to page 3, line 11, he
asked if the word "may" |eaves [the interpretation of this bill]
open.

MR. POUND responded that this |anguage would | eave it w de open

for the mner. He said with this wording, the mner may or may
not choose to apply the credit this way, as opposed to using the
word "shall". He added that the mner could have another way to

wite off the | osses.
Number 1269

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if anyone has done an economc
nodel to [examine] the viability of this plan

MR. POUND replied that he is not aware of any.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Foo if this bill actually
separates the placer [mners] fromhard rock [m ners].

Number 1300

MR FOO replied that he believes it would be necessary to
di stingui sh between the placer and hard rock mnes to enact this
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Foo if this bill clearly and
definitively makes a distinction between the two [types of
m ni ng] .

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG, in response to M. Foo's comrents
said the bill says the distinction nust be nade, but does not
actually nmake that distinction. It leaves DNR to nmke that
deci si on, he comment ed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2004



Nunmber 1368

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it appears a placer mner could save
$20 for a placer mine and a hard rock mner could save $50 for a
hard rock mne. According to the fiscal note this savings would
cost the state $15,000. He said he is concerned that this bil
would cost $15,000 to give out $20 or $50  credits.
Representative Gatto questioned that a mner would be concerned
about $20, and he said he does not believe that this is
sonmet hing that should be offered. He asked M. Pound to provide
a justification for spending $15, 000.

MR. POUND advised the commttee that he was told this norning
that the cost of "MIRSC' has gone up. He added that he only
received the fiscal note today and has not had the opportunity
to look at it to determne if the figures are conpletely valid.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked what the nmaxi num savi ngs woul d be
for the mner under subsections (f) and (g).

MR. POUND responded that it would depend on the viability of the
m ne. He explained that there would not be any kind of nmjor
savings for the rent, but there could be a savings on the
royalties if it is a viable mne.

Number 1506

CO CHAIR MASEK asked for clarification on what happens to the
sites nmentioned in the sponsor statenent and if big corporations
are letting these sites go [back to the state to be | eased].

MR. FOO asked for clarification of Co-Chair Masek's question.
Nunmber 1554

COCHAIR MASEK said the intent of this legislation is to
encourage nore m ning. She asked if there are there a |ot of
big corporations that are holding onto | eased mning sites which
are not being m ned.

MR. POUND responded that the statenment was inserted into the
sponsor statement based on information provided by [Fairbanks
Gold Mning, Inc.] that in the Fairbanks area there are a
considerable nunmber of mning clains that from a corporate
perspective, they do not consider viable for them to m ne. He
said their process is to just hold on to the properties and pay

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2004



the rent; therefore, no royalties are being paid to the state.
He said this bill would provide such companies to consider sone
kind of a sublease program to sublease [the sites] to a snmaller
m ning conpany thus making it a viable operation [capable of]
$50, 000 to $70,000 [in production] each year.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked who would qualify wunder this
pl an.

MR. POUND responded that a new mning operation or any mning
conpany that has been in operation less than five years would
qual ify.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH surm sed that a conpany that had been
in operation for nore than five years would not qualify.

MR. POUND replied that is correct.
Number 1689

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked how the regulations would be
rewitten to nake the program worKk.

MR. FOO responded that it would be necessary to sort out the
di stinction between the placer mners and hard rock m ners.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked about current regulations and how
the plan would work. She said she assunes sone of the costs of
devel oping the regulations are in the fiscal note.

Nunber 1752

KERW N KRAUSE, GCeologist, Division of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources, testified. He responded that
with the exploration incentive credit Act, the largest mning
conpanies as well as the small placer mners have availed
thenselves to that set of |aws. Even though quite few people

have filed applications to get prelimnary approval on [this
credit], the only mne that could actually take the credit wll
be the Pogo Mne, he comented. There have not been any
applications from small mners, he said. He indicated this
credit allows deductions of 50 percent from production,
royalties, mne |icense taxes, or corporate tax requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the departnent has inpl enented

any regulations to run the incentive program She clarified
that she is interested in any sidebars that my have been

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 4, 2004



est abl i shed. She asked what sidebars the departnent plans to
put into place to determne when it would be productive and
correct to allow for the reduction.

MR. KRAUSE responded that the departnent is not enacting any
regulations for the exploration incentive credit Act. The
division has a |lengthy application process that has sidebars, he
sai d. The departnent would scrutinize and adjudicate those
applications. M. Krause told nenbers that he could not say
whet her the departnment would use the same process with this
proposed | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the commttee could be provided
with a copy of the application for the exploration incentive
credit Act.

Number 1940

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to page 2, lines 18, 19, 25,
and 26, subsections (f) and (g), and he asked M. Foo what the
basis was for establishing those nunbers [with regard to the
acreage anount].

MR FOO commented that typically placer mne operations are
smal l er than hard rock operations.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there is a "break point" on
permts or applications [reflected in the sizes set out in
subsections (f) and (g)].

MR. FOO replied that he is not aware of any.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH conmented that anything that can be
done to help mners is a good thing, so he hoped the details
could be worked out. He asked how the rental fees are paid.

MR. KRAUSE responded that the rental fee is a three-tiered
rental plan in which the first 5 years is $25 for the smaller

sized clainms and $100 for the |larger clains. From years 6
through 10 it is $55 for the smaller sized clains and $220 for
| ar ger ones. At the 11th year and thereafter, the rental is

fixed at that point, and the rent is $130 for smaller clains to
$520 for the larger clains, those are billed out every year on
Septenber 1, and every 10 years there is a consuner price index
adj ust nent .

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2004



CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced her intention to hold the bill in
commttee while amendnents are being produced and the nenbers
have an opportunity to review additional materials.

[ HB 344 was hel d over.]

HB 345- CAMPSI TE FEES: DI SABLED VETERANS/ SENI ORS

Nunber 2119

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the final order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO. 345, "An Act relating to fees for state
park devel oped canpsites; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 2138

CAROLI NE ALLEN, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented HB 345 on behalf of Representative Fate,
sponsor . She told the conmttee that HB 345 provides for
Al askan residents who are senior citizens or disabled veterans
to obtain a canping permt for a non-urban canpsite at a
di scounted price froma $100 annual fee to $10 annual fee. She
said that this is a considerable savings [to them because the
Di vision of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation has decided to do away
W th seasons passes, except for disabled veterans, and instead
charge $20 per night per canpsite. Ms. Allen explained that
non-urban canpsites are canpsites that do not fall wthin or
adjacent to an urban city. The devel oped canpsites provide
restroons, picnic tables, cooking facilities, and approved water
sour ces. She suggested that the bill provides an incentive for
seniors and disabled veterans who are Al askan residents to
travel throughout the state. This bill wll keep tourism
dollars in the state, she added.

Nunber 2260

JOE MATHIS, Owner, Mntana Creek Canpground, testified in
opposition to HB 345. He told the nenbers that he believes this
bill is well intended, but is poor public policy. Not i ng that
he operates one of the state canpgrounds, he said the revenues
that conme from that canpground go to provide services for state

government. M. Mthis said if the intention of the |egislature
is to continue the idea of privatization of canpgrounds, this
bill provides no incentive for potential entrepreneurs. He told

menbers that anyone considering [entering into this industry]
woul d have to think about what other revenues the |egislature
woul d take away from them M. Mathis sunmarized his conments

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2004



by saying at a tinme when the state is trying to devise ways to
bring in revenue to cover the revenue shortfalls, this is not
good public policy and wuld be a disincentive for the
privatization of canpgrounds.

Nunber 2348

MR MATHI S said he believes this is encouraging an environment
of entitlenents. He said he is approaching the age of 60, and
he does not feel like a senior citizen. He warned that this is
a "slippery slope.” M. Mithis said he sees no problem in
provi ding disabled veterans with free canping; however, he sees
the inclusion of senior citizens as a whole new class of
entitlenments for people who are not entitled to it.

Nunmber 2404

SHEI LA LANKFCORD, Owner, Mntana Creek Canpground, testified in
opposition to HB 345. She said that as a business owner, she
has a problem with state governnment conpeting wth private
enterprise. She explained that there is a state canpground
across the highway from their [canpground], and although she
currently |eases the property, in the future if this bil
passes, seniors will be able to drive across the road and canp

for free. The current tourism boycott due to wolf control wll
adversely affect the private canpground, and offering free
canping alternatives wll only conpound the problem she
conmment ed.

M5. LANKFORD told nenbers as an Al askan, she truly cares about
state parks, and the availability and naintenance of those
par ks. Declining revenues and a lack of funding have already
i npacted parks with closures and |ack of maintenance. She said
she sees no logic in providing free canping under these
ci rcunst ances, because user fees are essential to offset limted

funding for nmaintenance. Ms. Lankford said she believes state
park closures and the lack of nmaintenance |ook terrible to
tourists, and reflect badly on Al aska. Negative imges are

di splayed instantly through chat roons and are devastating to
al | canpgrounds, she added.

Nunber 2489
M5. LANKFORD told nenbers that a 60-year old should no | onger be
considered a senior citizen. This bill is ainmed at "baby-

booners" who are the |argest segnent of the population in the
United States, she commented. Ms. Lankford pointed out that the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2004



baby- boonmer |[generation] is part of the wealthiest in the
country, she said so why would the |egislature consider giving
them free canmping [privileges]. Anyone who can afford to buy or
rent a notor hone does not need the incentive of free parking to
go canpi ng. There are few seniors who tent canp anynore, she
added. In sunmmary, Ms. Lankford quoted Dr. Phil in asking
Representative Fate, "Wat were you thinking?"

Number 2539

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO phrased his question in reference to M.
Lankford's coment that a 60 year old is not a senior citizen,
and he asked what age would she find appropriate to be a senior
citizen.

M5. LANKFORD responded that she believes that 75 years old would
be appropriate.

Number 2575

SCOIT REI SLAND, Vice President, Alaska Canpground Association;
Nati onal Board of RV Parks; Menber, Board of Directors, Al aska
Travel Industry Association, testified in opposition to HB 345.
He told nenbers that he was born and raised in Alaska and

currently owns two RV parks. The senior citizen of today is
much different that those of the past, he comrented. Seni ors
live longer, healthier lives and pursue a dynamc and active
lifestyle, and the majority of senior citizens have a high |evel
of disposable inconme, he said. M. Reisland said there have

been a record-breaking nunber of notor homes sold in the |ast
few years and baby-booners are a large part of this.

Nunmber 2678

MR. REISLAND pointed out that the state canpgrounds are in
serious trouble. Budget constraints have severely inpacted
state parks to the point that parks are not adequately
mai nt ai ned or staffed, he said. M. Reisland told nmenbers that
the Division of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation have announced the
increase in canping fees and the elimnation of the commerci al
pass program He said the division has turned to outsourcing
through bid contracts of the day-to-day operations of nany state
parks. Prior contractors will be less willing to participate in
this outsourcing program and it wll be cost prohibitive if
there is a lot of free canping, he suggested. M. Reisland said
he believes HB 345 would work in direct opposition to state park
efforts.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2004



Number 2734

MR. REISLAND told nenbers that there has been a decrease in
i ndependent travelers to the state because Alaska is no |onger
as conpetitive as other destinations due to severely |limted
tourism marketing dollars. He said Alaska Canpground
Associ ation nenbers are preparing for another boycott [because
of the new wolf control progran]. The private canpground sector
has worked coll aboratively with the state and federal parklands
in an effort to elimnate unfair conpetition between the public

and private sector canping facilities, he said. The bill wll
underm ne nmuch of the work the association has done with state
and federal parks. It will limt user fees, reduce the state's

ability to provide a quality canping experience, and wll
undermine a level playing field between private and public
sector canping, he summarized. This is wunfair governnent
conpetition, he stated. He said he hopes nenbers consider the
Al aska Canpground Association's views on this issue.

Nunber 2829

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Reisland to conment on the age of
baby booners. He said he believes the |eading edge of baby
booners is about 53 years of age.

MR. REI SLAND responded that is probably correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that assumng that is correct,
there are no baby booners that are senior citizens. He said he
would prefer not to mx the two [terns] since they are not
equal

Number 2861
REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said that she believes baby booners were
born in 1946 and 1947 and people 55 years of age and ol der are
consi dered seni ors. She asked what the definition of a senior
citizen is.

Number 2897

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Reisland if he knows how many
season passes were honored in the park |ast year.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2004



MR. RElI SLAND responded that he does not know that nunber. He
told nenbers that there are a lot of seniors who stay in private
canpgrounds because there is a marketing effort to attract them

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Reisland who would have that
i nf ormati on.

MR. REISLAND replied that the D vision of Parks and Qutdoor
Recreati on woul d have it.

Number 2950

PETE PANARESE, Field Operations Manager, Division of Parks and
Qut door Recreation, testified. He said last year, the Al aska
state parks system sold approximately 1,700 canping passes to
residents of the state and gave away 1,100 disabled veterans
passes.

CO CHAIR MASEK turned attention to the nunber of people that use
t he canpgrounds [tape ends m dspeech].

TAPE 04-1, SIDE B
Nunmber 2985

CO CHAI R MASEK continued by saying that |ast year, the state had
sone state parks that were closed one in the Mtanuska-Susitna
("Mat-Su") area and one in the Kenai area. Noting that there
have been budget shortfalls, she said she wondered how the park
service would be maintained and nanaged if there was going to be
anot her revenue shortfall with this bill. She stated that she
is reluctant to [put forth] her support for it wuntil nore
details can be found out with regard to the fiscal inpact and
what it would do to the park systemin FY 05.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked M. Panarese if those were
resi dent nunbers.

MR. PANARESE said |ast year, decals were only sold to Al aska
resi dents. Several years ago, benefits for nonresidents of the
state were stopped. He said only Al askan residents and resident
di sabl ed veterans are eligible for the annual canping permt.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if the parks could be opened back
up by using the fees that Co-Chair Masek spoke of.

MR. PANARESE said the state park system had experienced a bunch
of reductions for the summer of 2003 that forced canpground

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 4, 2004



cl osures. The majority of those closed canpgrounds in the
valley and in the Northern area near Fairbanks were reopened
through the use of private contractors. He said the division
was successful in opening 9 of the 11 facilities that it had to
close tenporarily until contractors were found. M. Panarese
remarked, "The testinony that |'ve heard is a testanent to
that." The state was successful in getting people to run its
parks for it. He said this is one of the strategies being used
to keep parks open and structure the budget for many years.
This isn't a new strategy, he said.

MR. PANARESE said it is working, the parks were opened with the
exi sting fee program which supported the 1,700 decals that were
sold and the 1,100 passes issued to the state's disabled
vet er ans. Ofering his perspective, he said this is a
| egi slative decision and he didn't believe the departnent had
taken a position. M. Panarese renmarked, "At least ny bill
anal ysis does not have that block filled in, we defer to you on
that." He said it's particularly the support of the disabled
vet erans pass. However, he said the current package seens to be
wor king and the privatization/partnership was a major factor in
the departnent's decision to do away with the annual canping
pass for state residents. M. Panarese stated that it wasn't an
idle decision, it was |ooked at hard for nmany years, and this
year the [departnent] had to nmeke that nove. It provides nore
accurate cost recovery for what is being done and a platform for
whi ch the [departnent] can continue privatizing, he said.

Nunber 2817

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the noney collected for passes and
fees goes into the general fund or if it is kept by the
[ Di vi sion of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation].

MR. PANARESE said the legislation that allows fees to be charged
requires that all noney be deposited into the general fund, and
the legislature, in its discretion, can "reappropriate" that
back to the Division of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation for its
use. He remarked, "We have been very fortunate that for much of
our history of collecting fees, the legislature has seen fit to
do that."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the fees that are returned are an
equal [anobunt] to those submitted or if it is nmore in line with
what the legislature feels is appropriate and is not connected
to the anount of noney coll ected.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2004



MR. PANARESE explained that there is a dynamic in the situation
of collecting fees. He remarked:

W collect the majority of our fees during the very
end of the fiscal year and the beginning of a new
fiscal year. W routinely will ... deposit all of our
funds into the general fund and have been reliably
| apsi ng about $100,000 to $150, 000, nmaybe even nore of

those funds that ... was not authorized for us to
spend by the previous year's ... legislative budget
deci si on. So we seem to run behind the curve for us

to nost efficiently use our budget because of the
position of the fiscal year. Right in the mddle of
our busi est season.

Number 2735

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN expressed concern about [how the fee would
apply to] disabled veterans. Noting that there was not
currently a fee for disabled veterans, he asked if this bill
would raise the fee to $10 and bring in an additional $11,000
[in revenue]. He asked if there were 1,100 disabled passes
given out during the prior year. Representative Lynn said he
wonders how that conpares to the anmount of nobney that was spent
to decorate the elevators in the Capitol building. He remarked,
"I think we owe our disabled veterans."

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked if this includes state cabin
rental s.

MR. PANARESE sai d no.
Nunmber 2668

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d the operations of its state parks
had been outsourced to private contractors. He asked what
changing the fee structure wuld do to the contractual
obligation that the state has.

MR. PANARESE said he was not sure he could respond to the
guestion stated that way. He asked Representative Guttenberg to
restate the question.

Number 2640

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said the economc relationship wth
the operators of the state parks is being changed by changing

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2004



the fee structure. He asked what would happen to those
contracts that the state has outsourced to operate its parks.
s the obligation broken, he asked.

MR. PANARESE said he did not believe the obligation will be
broken, rather it will just make it far nore difficult for [the
state] to obtain qualified private contractors to operate state
canpgrounds. He remarked:

Cause when they pencil what their revenue wll be to
pay for the service they're providing, it's difficult
for themto figure how nuch revenue they won't be able
to collect. If a senior is in their state park
canpground, we could very well require them to honor
the pass and that revenue goes away fromthem

The people that we had operating in our
canpgrounds the l|ast summer, the new operators, were
commenting quite regularly that this was a detrinent
to them and they were trying to inprovise in the field

such as saying to wus, "... Wy don't we allow the
decal wusers to have a price break rather than free
canpi ng."

.. W& tried to reconcile that and canme ... with the
decision that ... it's probably best to not have that

benefit available, that everybody pays the fees wth
t he exception of the disabled veterans. That has been
not a negotiable item W require our private
contractors to honor that group of people.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Panarese if he'd had any
f eedback concerning this bill about whether operations would be
conti nued. He said the state's been successful in outsourcing
these things to keep them open. He explained that he is worried
that if sonmething is changed, the [state] is going to |ose the
operations of the parks and they will close.

MR. PANARESE said the private canpground operators hadn't been
in contact with him directly. Noting that a public notice had
been issued, he said one of the things that was done earlier is
[the division] stopped offering the annual canping pass to
residents and the annual pass to RV [recreational vehicle]

rental conpanies effective January 1, 2004. It reduced one of
the major inpedinents for recruiting operators and outsourcing
state canpgrounds. He said the major inpedinent was honoring

decals that were perhaps going to be "in their units for weeks

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2004



at a time wwth no revenue coming to them" M. Panarese said he
expects that if this legislation were to pass, [operators] would
be concer ned.

Number 2494

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if there was a charge to veterans
for a replacenent permt.

MR. PANARESE said the state park system had to have a
contingency for replacing all of its decals. He remnarked:

If a person cones in with a bit of the decal that they

scraped ... off their window and sold the car, we'll
give them another one for $10. If they give us a
reasonabl e excuse as to why ... they need another

decal and it's something of the nature that the
vehicle was damaged, they replaced the w ndow or
sonething of that nature, we charge them $10 to
replace it.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if there was an increased fee for
peopl e to get a replacenent decal

MR. PANARESE r enar ked:

Currently, if a disabled veteran loses their fee or
if a canpground pass holder that was a resident

lost it, ... we would replace it for $10. I f they
wanted to purchase an additional pass ... for a second
vehicle or ... a third vehicle, and that is a

situation that we've had to accommodate over the
years, we would charge them half price for the second
pass and then full price for the third pass.

Wth the veterans we had to conme up with a little bit
different situation .... W would sell them a second
pass for $50 and we issue the passes for two years and
if they bought a third pass in the first year, we
would sell it to them for $100. | f they bought a
third pass in the second year, we'd sell it them for
$200, | believe ....

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked why disabled veterans are charged

nore for the second and third pass and why [the cost] isn't
al ways the sanme. She asked if this bill would change that.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2004



MR. PANARESE r esponded:

The legislation that we have in AS 41.21.026 basically
instructs us to issue a ... annual canping pass
permt, and we've all ... assumed that was one. )
Each veteran would get a free pass. The second pass,
we would sell to them at the same price we would sell
it to everybody else. ... The regine | just nentioned
is now no |longer going to be in place because we no
| onger offer the canping pass.

So we have got to go to work right away and anmend our
director's order and the information online - do the
public notice that would put the word out w dely that
this is a change in the benefits. W no |onger offer
a canping pass, there's no need to sell the veterans
or other recipients of this that's being considered by
the bill, a second and third pass. W woul d issue
them a pass free and thereafter we would want them to
pay the nightly fee.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked how many second and third passes
had al ready been i ssued.

MR. PANARESE said he didn't have that infornmation.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA suggested that it mght not be a
significant nunber.

MR. PANARESE said that would be his estinmate.
Nunmber 2296

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked how nmany nonresidents ask for annua
passes.

MR. PANARESE repli ed:

They haven't asked. It was an issue that was very
demanding on us. Wen we ... elimnated that
nonresi dent pass, we had great trepidation that it
woul d affect our visitation and people would be very
concerned about it, but we didn't get a lot of concern
regi st er ed. | think I had eight calls and | had to
wite a few letters.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he could foresee this causing a real
guagmre on the Kenai Peninsula, simlar to what Representative
Masek had nentioned about [the Matanuska-Susitna] Valley. He
said a park closed on the [Kenai Peninsulal] and he viewed this
as being a ness.

Number 2239

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM said it is her intention to hold the bill
She indicated the conmmttee is waiting to receive nore
information and would need to do nore work. She nentioned that
several nenbers had questions and concerns about the attached
fiscal note.

[ HB 345 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:47 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 4, 2004



